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April 22, 2025 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO.: V 
 

TO 
 

INVITATION FOR BID NO.: GPA-027-25 
 

FOR 
 

GLORIA B. NELSON PUBLIC SERVICE BUILDING FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE AND 
MAINTENANCE CONTRACT 

 
 

Prospective Bidders are hereby notified of the following responses to the inquiries received from 
Bidder No.: 1 dated April 4, 2025: 
 
INCLUSIONS: 
 

- Attachment C: Plan and Hydraulic Calc – Wet Piping 
- Attachment D: GPA-GWA Multi-Purpose Facility Fire Pump Inspection 
- Attachment E: Fire Suppression 2D 
- Attachment F: GPA GWA Gloria B 

 
QUESTION: 
1. Fire Sprinkler System Documentation:  

 
o Please provide copies of the As-built drawings and original Acceptance Testing 

Certifications for the fire sprinkler system, including the fire pump system. (Note: 
Attachment A of the bid documents appears to pertain to the Fire Alarm System, not the 
Fire Sprinkler System.) 

 
ANSWER: 
 Refer to Attachments C, D and F of INCLUSIONS above. 
 
QUESTION: 
2. FM-200 Clean Agent Suppression System Documentation:  

 
o Please provide copies of the As-built drawings, Operation and Maintenance manuals, and 

System Acceptance Testing Certification for the FM-200 Clean Agent Suppression 
System.  

 
ANSWER: 
 Refer to Attachment E of INCLUSIONS above. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 3DAA356D-FDE1-4468-A37E-36F47A2863E1



GPA-027-25, Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building Fire Protection Service and Maintenance Contract  Page 2 of 3 
S.Taijeron 

 
 
QUESTION: 
3. FM-200 System Component Availability:  

 
o Given that Viking no longer manufactures the installed FM-200 Clean Agent System, how 

will the government address potential future component replacement and system 
maintenance?  

 
ANSWER: 

Any changes to an existing system shall be submitted in writing for further review. 
 
QUESTION: 
4. FM-200 Cylinder Hydrostatic Testing:  

 
o As the FM-200 cylinders are beyond their 10-year hydrostatic testing requirement, please 

clarify the government's plan for addressing this issue.  
 
ANSWER: 

Testing, maintenance, parts, certification and inspection are part of the fire protection 
maintenance contract. Any FM-200 equipment (cylinders included) that require testing or 
replacement, that is part of the maintenance contract. 

 
QUESTION: 
5. FM-200 Cylinder Bracketing (UPS Room): 

 
o The UPS Room features two FM-200 cylinder feeds, but only one cylinder bracket is 

present. Is the provision and installation of additional bracketing, to ensure code 
compliance, within the scope of this contract? 

 
ANSWER: 

The installation of an additional cylinder bracket is in line with the terms of the 
maintenance contract. 

 
QUESTION: 
6. UPS Room Expansion Drawings: 

 
o Please provide copies of the design/As-built drawings reflecting the expansion of the UPS 

Room, to ensure accurate assessment of the system configuration.  
 
ANSWER: 
 Refer to Attachment E of INCLUSIONS above. 
 
QUESTION: 
7. Server Room Riser Pipe Bracketing: 

 
o The riser pipes in the Server Room, downstream of the rubber discharge hose, lack 

bracketing. Given the 725 PSI cylinder discharge pressure, is the provision and installation 
of adequate bracketing for these riser pipes within the scope of this contract?  
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ANSWER: 

All work relating to maintenance, repair, inspection, and certification are included in the fire 
alarm/suppression protection system maintenance contract. 

 
QUESTION: 
8. IFB GPA-027-25, Page 6, Descriptions E & F:  

 
o Please clarify whether the existing Fire Sprinkler System incorporates a Pre-Action/Dry 

Pipe System. Provision of the As-built drawings would greatly assist in this clarification.  
 
ANSWER: 

a. Yes. FM-200 dry-pipe sprinkler system inspection and testing is part of the 
maintenance contract. 

b. Refer to Attachments C, D and F of INCLUSIONS above.  
 
QUESTION: 
9. Amendment No. 3, Description F.9: 

 
o Amendment No. 3, Description F.9, stipulates that system parameters must be "within 

acceptable levels." Please clarify the specific acceptable levels, as manufacturer 
requirements typically specify a minimum standard, not a range. 

 
ANSWER: 

Within acceptable levels, implies "readings must meet manufacturer recommended 
standards". 

 
All other Terms and Conditions in the bid package shall remain unchanged and in full force. 
 
 
 
       JOHN M. BENAVENTE, P.E.  
       General Manager 
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Req'd 
Flow 

(GPM) 

# of test 
outlets 

Nozzle 
Orifice 
size 

Req'd 
pitot 

reading 

Suction 
pressure 
(PSIG) 

Discharg
e 

pressure 

*Second 
pressure 
gauge* 

RPM's if 
available 

Net Pump 
pressure 

Previous 
test 

pressure 
0 Flow Meter N/A N/A 0 98 N/A 3564 98 N/A 

250 Flow Meter N/A N/A 0 92 N/A 3662 92 N/A 

500 Flow Meter N/A N/A 0 85 N/A 3660 85 N/A 

750 Flow Meter N/A N/A 0 65 N/A 3554 65 N/A 

                                                            

                                                            

DATE OF TEST: 10/14/14 NAME OF BUILDING OR SITE:      GPA-GWA Multi-Purpose Facility 

ADDRESS OF BUILDING OR SITE:      Route 15 Mangilao, GU 
X    Regulation 4 X FD Witness, if any :     FD assignment       

     Russell Powell  

      

MANUFACTURER OF FIRE PUMP:     AC Fire Pump Systems 

RATING OF FIRE PUMP:    500 80 

  X  Diesel  

 NO  

If yes, how many gallons of diesel or other approved fuel is available? 100 
      

PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE SETTING, if applicable    N/A 

AUTO START SETTING:      60 Manual 

N/A MANUFACTURER OF CONTROLLER:          Eaton 

JOCKEY PUMP CONTROLLER: AUTO START SETTING:   70 80 

     60,000 Next to Fire Pump Room 

N/A Minimum:     N/A 

      

NUMBER OF STARTS      6 X  RESULTS UNSATISFACTORY  

NUMBER OF STARTS      6 

X  RESULTS UNSATISFACTORY  

 standby power  

   

   

                   PUMP S/N: 13-068092-01-01/OK5880 

 

 

FIRE PUMP - STANDARD TEST REPORT 

TYPE OF TEST:  

TESTER: name company  Consolidated Fire Protection, LLC. Cert. of Fitness # see name 

FIRE PUMP INFORMATION 

FIRE PUMP NUMBER (USE SEPARATE FORM FOR EACH FIRE PUMP):     1 

GPM at PSI (Note: If pressure is given in feet, convert to PSI by multiplying by 0.4341) 

TYPE OF DRIVER :  Electric: 

A. If electrically-driven, does a generator supply standby/emergency power?  YES      X 

(an 8-hour supply for the generator operating at full capacity is required) 

B. If diesel driven, how many gallons of diesel fuel is available? (an 8-hour supply is required; the horsepower of the engine is equal in number 

of gallons required for an 8-hour supply) 

PSI 

CONTROLLER: 

PSI; AUTO STOP SETTING: PSI 

OVERRUN TIME SETTING, if applicable: minutes; 

PSI; AUTO STOP SETTING: PSI 

WATER SUPPLY INFORMATION: 

CAPACITY OF ON-SITE TANK, if applicable: gallons; LOCATION OF TANK: 

IF SUPPLIED DIRECTLY BY STREET MAIN, PRESSURE AT INLET: Maximum:  PSI; PSI 

PERFORMANCE TEST 

1. AUTOMATIC START(S) OF FIRE PUMP (For Reg. 4 the auto start is to be performed from highest, most remote point 
prior to any other test procedures):  LOCATION OF TEST FLOW(S):              Inspectors Test/Test Loop W/ Meter  

RESULTS SATISFACTORY 

2. MANUAL START(S) OF FIRE PUMP: 

RESULTS SATISFACTORY 

3. FLOW TEST USING TEST OUTLETS: If electric driver, was test on normal power 

0% of rated capacity 

50% of rated capacity 

100% of rated capacity 

150% of rated capacity 

       % of rated capacity 

       % of rated capacity 

Page 1 of 2 
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* SECOND PRESSURE GAUGE LOCATED       

X  NO  

X  NO  

 NO  

IF NOT, SPECIFY:       N/A New Pump 

     

     

     

X  NO  

IF NOT, SPECIFY:       

     

     

     

X  NO  

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

SIGNATURE OF TESTER             

Falcon Fire Protection, LLC 

, The 
second pressure gauge is to be located in the fire pump room in the same pressure zone as the pump being tested, but as remote as 
practical from fire pump discharge and flow turbulence (such as at the controller). Caution: Beware of trapped pressure! 

ACCEPTANCE TEST: DOES THE FIRE PUMP EQUAL OR EXCEED THE CERTIFIED CURVE AT ALL POINTS? YES 

AT 150% OF RATED CAPACITY, IS NET PUMP PRESSURE AT LEAST 65% OF RATED PRESSURE? YES 
REG. 4 ONLY: IF PREVIOUS PUMP TESTS RESULTS ARE AVAILABLE, IS THE NET PUMP PRESSURE 
WITHIN 10% OF THE PREVIOUS RESULTS AT EACH POINT TESTED? YES 

IS FIRE PUMP STATUS INFORMATION CORRECTLY INDICATED IN THE FIRE CONTROL ROOM, if applicable? YES 

OVERALL EVALUATION: IS THE FIRE PUMP IN PROPER OPERATING CONDITION? YES 

IF NOT, SPECIFY: 

COMMENTS: 

SIGNATURE OF FD WITNESS, 
if any 
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Figure 1-7.2.1 Certificate of Completion 
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124020

Under completion of the system(s) satisfactory test(s) witnessed (if required by the authority having 
jurisdiction):
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